
EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS 

1 If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately. 
2 Follow the green signs. 
3 Use the stairs not the lifts. 
4 Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 
 

 
If you require further information, please contact: Lizzie Rich 
Telephone:  01344 352253 
Email: committee@bracknell-forest.gov.uk  
Published: 19 February 2019 

  

 
 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 

Council 
Wednesday 27 February 2019, 7.30 pm 
Council Chamber - Time Square, Market Street, Bracknell, RG12 
1JD 

To: The Council 

Councillor Finch (Mayor), Councillor Mrs McKenzie (Deputy Mayor),  
Councillors Allen, Mrs Angell, Angell, Ashman, Dr Barnard, Bettison OBE, D Birch, 
Mrs Birch, G Birch, Brossard, Brunel-Walker, Dudley, Finnie, Ms Gaw, Mrs Hamilton, 
Harrison, Mrs Hayes MBE, Ms Hayes, Heydon, Dr Hill, Mrs Ingham, Kennedy, Leake, 
McCracken, Mrs McCracken, Mrs McKenzie-Boyle, McLean, Mrs Mattick, Ms Merry, Peacey, 
Phillips, Porter, Skinner, Mrs Temperton, Thompson, Tullett, Turrell, Virgo, Wade and 
Worrall 

 

 

TIMOTHY WHEADON 
Chief Executive 
 

mailto:committee@bracknell-forest.gov.uk


Council 
Wednesday 27 February 2019, 7.30 pm 
Council Chamber - Time Square, Market Street, Bracknell, RG12 
1JD 

Sound recording, photographing, filming and use of social media at meetings which are 
held in public are permitted.  Those wishing to record proceedings at a meeting are 
however advised to contact the Democratic Services Officer named as the contact for 
further information on the front of this agenda as early as possible before the start of 
the meeting so that any special arrangements can be made. 

AGENDA 
 Page No 

The meeting will be opened with prayers by the Mayor's Chaplain 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Minutes of Previous Meeting   

 To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the 
Council held on 16 January 2019.  
 

5 - 8 

3. Declarations of Interest   

 Members are asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary or affected 
interests in respect of any matter to be considered at this meeting. 
 
Any Member with a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in a matter should 
withdraw from the meeting when the matter is under consideration and 
should notify the Democratic Services Officer in attendance that they 
are withdrawing as they have such an interest. If the Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest is not entered on the register of Members interests 
the Monitoring Officer must be notified of the interest within 28 days. 
 
Any Member with an affected Interest in a matter must disclose the 
interest to the meeting.  There is no requirement to withdraw from the 
meeting when the interest is only an affected interest, but the 
Monitoring Officer should be notified of the interest, if not previously 
notified of it, within 28 days of the meeting. 
 

 

4. Mayor's Announcements   

 To include a presentation from Nick Hartwright, CEO of This is Projekt. 
 

 

5. Executive Report   

 To receive the Leader’s report on the work of the Executive since the 
Council meeting held on 16 January 2019. 
 

9 - 12 

6. Financial Budgets and Revenue Plans 2019/20   

 To resolve recommendations in respect of: 

 Capital Programme 2019/20 – 2021/22 

 Revenue Budget 2019/20 

13 - 22 



 

 

 Council Tax 2019/20 
 
The supporting information has been circulated as a separate 
document and is available with this agenda on the Council website. 
 

7. Questions Submitted Under Council Procedure Rule 10   

 By Councillor Mrs Temperton to Councillor Bettison, Executive Member 
for Council Strategy and Community Cohesion: 
 
What has the Council done to prepare for Brexit? 
 

 

 

https://bit.ly/2SAwpRM


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

COUNCIL 
16 JANUARY 2019 
7.30  - 8.18 PM 

  

 
Present: 
The Mayor (Councillor Alvin Finch), Councillors Mrs McKenzie (Deputy Mayor), Allen, 
Mrs Angell, Angell, Ashman, Dr Barnard, Bettison OBE, D Birch, Mrs Birch, G Birch, 
Brossard, Brunel-Walker, Dudley, Finnie, Ms Gaw, Mrs Hamilton, Mrs Hayes MBE, 
Ms Hayes, Heydon, Dr Hill, Mrs Ingham, Kennedy, Leake, McCracken, Mrs McCracken, 
Mrs McKenzie-Boyle, McLean, Mrs Mattick, Ms Merry, Peacey, Porter, Skinner, 
Mrs Temperton, Thompson, Tullett, Turrell, Virgo, Wade and Worrall 
 
Apologies for absence were received from: 
Councillors Phillips 

33. Minutes of Previous Meeting  

Subject to the following amendments: 

 Attendance record be amended to reflect the fact that Councillor Thompson 
had given his apologies and was not present. 

 Minute 32: ‘In October a number of maintenance issues had been identified at 
the centre which mean The Wayz had to close temporarily’ be amended to 
read ‘‘In October a number of maintenance issues had been identified at the 
centre which mean The Zone had to close temporarily’. 
 

RESOLVED that subject to the above amendments, the minutes of the Council 
meeting held on 28 November 2018 be approved and signed by the Mayor as a 
correct record.  

34. Declarations of Interest  

There were no declarations of interest. 

35. Mayor's Announcements  

Kevin Gibbs 
The Mayor welcomed Kevin Gibbs to the meeting. Kevin would be joining the Council 
as Executive Director: Delivery from 18 March 2019.  
 
Help Yourself Community Map 
Councillor Birch reported that The Guardian had featured an article on the Bracknell 
Forest Help Yourself Community map which had been developed by Public Health. 
The map had been developed to reduce loneliness across the Borough by 
encouraging the lonely and vulnerable to engage with over 400 organisations offering 
activity groups and community support.   
 
Adult Social Care Christmas 
Councillor Birch reported that the Christmas period had been a success for Adults 
Social Care who had worked hard to support people to enjoy Christmas in their own 

5

Agenda Item 2



 

 

home. A particular success story was of one individual who had been taken home 
from hospital on Christmas Eve.  
 
Town Centre Vision 2032 
Councillor Brunel-Walker informed Members that the Town Centre Vision 2032 which 
outlined development plans for the Civic Quarter and Southern Gateway had been 
published. 
 
Easthampstead House  
Councillor Brunel-Walker reported that the lease for the meanwhile use of 
Easthampstead House had been signed. The new space would be used to support 
new businesses, and would create valuable employment space in the town centre.  
 
Business Rates Pilot 
Councillor Heydon informed Members that Bracknell Forest had been accepted onto 
the Government’s Business Rates Pilot for a second year running. It was anticipated 
that the Pilot would generate an additional £4 million in revenue for the Borough.  
 
Bracknell Leisure Centre refurbishment 
Councillor McCracken reported that the dry changing areas and new reception areas 
at Bracknell Leisure Centre had now opened for public use. The new gym located in 
the former Forest Suite area had opened on a soft opening, and members were 
encourage to join to make use of this facility.  
 
Photo competition 
Councillor McCracken informed members that the annual photo competition had 
received 70 entrants. The successful entries would be displayed at South Hill Park.  
 
Library user feedback 
Councillor McCracken commented on a piece of feedback he had received from a 
resident who had said how much they enjoyed using the library at Great Hollands.  
 
Glass bottle recycling 
Councillor Mrs Hayes reported that glass bottle recycling was due to be incentivised 
in the same manner as blue bins through a good causes scheme. Fifteen glass 
recycling points within the RE3 catchment would be awarded £500 by FCC for good 
recycling behaviour and quantities, of which 6 were in Bracknell Forest. The funds 
would be awarded to nominated good causes.  
 
Charity Collection Days 
The Charity Collection Days for the Mayor’s Charity at The Lexicon and The 
Meadows Shopping Centres had been a success despite wet weather, and Members 
were thanked for their support and participation.  
 
Spring Soiree 
The Mayor asked Members to ‘save the date’ for his Spring Soiree event at Bracknell 
Rugby Club on 22 March 2019. 

36. Executive Report  

Councillor Bettison OBE, Leader of the Council, presented his report on the work of 
the Executive since that reported at the Council meeting on 28 November 2018. The 
Executive had met once on 18 December 2018.  
 
The Leader highlighted the following matters which had been considered by the 
Executive: 

6



 

 

 
Transformation and Finance 

 The Capital Programme 2019/20 – 2021/22 and Revenue Budget 2019/20 
had been agreed, and detailed proposals had been published and were out 
for consultation. The results of the consultation would be formally considered 
on 12 February 2019, ahead of the full debate at Council on 27 February 
2019.  
  

Council Strategy and Community Cohesion 

 The Council Plan Overview Report for Quarter 2 had demonstrated expected 
progress. Raw data for Quarter 3 would soon be available.   

 
Planning and Transport 

 The Bracknell Town Neighbourhood Plan was being prepared for consultation 
and would be review by an independent examiner. 
  

Culture, Resources and Public Protection 

 The Review of Statement of Gambling Principles had been approved by the 
Licensing and Safety Committee and was put to Council for adoption.   

 
Adult Services, Health and Housing 

 The Integrated Sexual and Reproductive Health Service Tender had been 
successful, and there was a strong focus on preventing unwanted 
pregnancies amongst vulnerable residents.  

 
Wider leadership team 

 Appointments had been made to the posts of Executive Director: Delivery, 
and Assistant Directors of Children’s Social Care Operations, Adult Social 
Care Operations and Early Help and Communities.  

 
Transformation Programme Review 

 The transformation programme had been refocussed to ensure maximum 
benefit, following the first five years of the programme. Several of the initial 
projects undertaken by Members and Officers had progressed to continue as 
business as usual.  

 New projects included a Joint Venture, Commercial Centre, Emergency Duty 
Service with Forestcare, and the One Front Door.  

 
On the proposition of Councillor Allen, Chairman of Licensing and Safety Committee 
and seconded by Councillor Thompson it was  
 
RESOLVED that the revised Statement of Gambling Principles be endorsed. 

37. Questions Submitted Under Council Procedure Rule 10  

Councillor Mrs Temperton asked Councillor Mrs Hayes MBE, Executive Member for 
the Environment the following published question: 
 
New government plans to cut down on landfill waste proposed by the Environment 
Secretary, Michael Gove, include a commitment to weekly food waste collections 
from every home. Many Councils already do this. 
 
When will Bracknell Forest have such a collection and how will it be funded? There is 
no funding for such included in the proposed 2019/20 budget.  
 

7



 

 

Councillor Mrs Hayes MBE responded that the Executive had agreed to an 8 year 
extension of the waste collection contract with Suez commenting from 1 April 2019. 
The Executive had also supported the purchase of a new fleet of waste collection 
trucks which could facilitate food collection in the future. The Executive also agreed 
that officers should review options in regard to food collection in partnership with re3 
to support the Government strategy.  
 
Councillor Mrs Hayes stated that the Council would continue to work with contractors 
and residents to find affordable and sustainable ways to collect waste. It was noted 
that in the UK, of the 7m tonnes of food being disposed of annually, 5m tonnes was 
still fit for consumption. Councillor Mrs Hayes welcomed the Government Strategy to 
address this issue.  
 
The cost of collection and the savings relative to the cost of landfill were both key 
areas of consideration. Participation rates and tonnages needed to be calculated in 
order to establish affordability of such food collection schemes.  
 
Councillor Mrs Hayes thanked residents who produced little waste or had engaged in 
home composting, however it was stressed that there were many residents who 
could do more to recycle and use food up.  
 
Collections in high population density estates and flats needed to be resolved before 
residents were encouraged to put their food out for collection.  
 
In summary, Councillor Mrs Hayes stated that re3 partners across Bracknell Forest, 
Reading and Wokingham Councils would be considering and responding to the 
Government’s consultation document. Once the implications of a food waste 
collection service were established to ensure a good and inclusive food collection 
service, budget provision would be sought in Bracknell Forest.  
 

 
 
 
MAYOR 

8



To: COUNCIL 
27 February 2019 

  
 

EXECUTIVE REPORT TO COUNCIL 
The Leader 

 
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 Since the Council meeting on 16 January 2019, the Executive met on the 12 

February 2019.  This report summarises decisions taken by reference to the relevant 
portfolio within which they fall.   

 
1.2 Updated Forward Plans are published every Friday and can be viewed online at 

www.bracknell-forest.gov.uk.  Full details on the decisions taken by individual 
portfolio holders can also be accessed online through the Council’s website. 

 
 
2 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 Council is asked to note the report.   
 
 
3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 The reasons for recommendations are set out in the supporting information and in 

the reports considered by the Executive. 
 
 
4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1 Alternative options are discussed in the relevant individual reports considered by the 

Executive. 
 
 
5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
 Transformation and Finance 
 
5.1 Business Case for the Creation of a Country Park at Horseshoe Lake 
 
5.1.1 The Executive agreed to the implement enhancements at Horseshoe Lake, 

Sandhurst to create a country park.  The Executive also agreed capital funding of 
£2.6m for the new Horseshoe Lake Country Park as set out in table 2 of the Director: 
Place, Planning & Regeneration’s report. 

 
5.1.2 The Parks and Countryside review forms part of the Council’s Transformation 

Programme and over the last nine months it had been exploring ways in which 
savings could be achieved whilst transforming the way in which the service is 
delivered.  The Gateway review demonstrated that a saving in the region of £475,000 
could be delivered over 3 years with a Country Park contributing a potential £85,000 
of additional income per annum. 

 
5.1.3 Key proposals for the scheme include a newly built and re-located pavilion with an 

integrated café, function room and ancillary spaces such as toilets, kitchen and 

9

Agenda Item 5

http://www.bracknell-forest.gov.uk/


storage.  Existing car parking will be expanded to provide 140+ spaces, including 
disabled parking close to the pavilion.  There will be a bespoke natural play area, 
water sports, changing and shower areas and a storage yard with biomass boiler. 

 
5.1.4 Executive Members noted that there were some local concerns related to increased 

traffic flows on minor roads in the area and accepted that these would need to be 
dealt with through the normal planning process when the stage of submitting a 
planning application is reached. 

 
5.2 Council Tax Discretionary Discount and Exemptions  
 
5.2.1 The Executive agreed to maintain the current policy of not granting discount to 

taxpayers of Class A, B, C and D properties (empty and second homes).  However, 
the decided that the Council Tax payable for properties which have been unoccupied 
and substantially unfurnished for a continuous period of over 2 years should incur a 
100% premium (up from 50%), in accordance with the Rating and Council Tax 
(empty dwellings) Act 2018 from 1 April 2019. 

 
5.2.2 Council Tax Class A, B, C and D properties (Long term empties up to 24 months and 

second homes) are properties emptied of furniture and effects.  The Council taxpayer 
previously benefited from keeping a property empty and unoccupied as they received 
a discount.  The decision to remove all discounts increases the revenues that can be 
collected but more importantly encourages owners to bring empty homes into use 
whilst balancing the needs of owners of second homes and empty properties. 

 
5.3 Capital Programme 2019/20 – 2021/22 and Revenue Budget 2019/20 

 
 A separate report on the agenda deals with these items.  
 
5.4 Asset Management Plan 2019-2022 
 
5.4.1 The Executive approved the Asset Management Plan 2019-2022.  The current 

Corporate Asset Management Plan (CAMP) was developed in 2016 to cover the 
period until 2018.  The new plan has been developed in consultation with all 
directorates including a presentation to DMTs and Overview and Scrutiny. 

 
5.4.2 The key principles underpinning the Council’s Asset Management Strategy are very 

simple, being: 
 

i. Maximising the potential of operational land and buildings. 
ii. Disposing of surplus operational land unless strategically important. 
iii. Supporting the strategic development of Bracknell town centre, including the 

possibility of a joint venture. 
iv. Maintaining a mixed commercial portfolio both historic and new. 
v. Working with individual services to facilitate projects to improve service 

delivery. 
 

The plan then sets out a number of objectives for each of the Council’s directorates 
which will enable these principles to be delivered. 

 
5.5 Strategic Review of Delivering Further Regeneration in Bracknell  
 
5.5.1 The Executive endorsed the vision for future development in and around Bracknell 

town centre and noted the findings of the Place Based Review of Bracknell, 
undertaken as part of the One Public Estate programme.  The Executive also 

10



supported the findings of the Strategic Case developed by GVA and Pinsent Masons 
that considered options to take forward development of key Council owned site and 
authorised the Director: Finance to commence a procurement process to seek a Joint 
Venture partner to help deliver the agreed vision and objectives.  A final decision on 
a preferred partner will be taken by the Executive in late 2019. 
 

5.5.2 In parallel with development of the strategic case, the Council has been working with 
the Bracknell Regeneration Partnership (BRP) to understand and help secure their 
plans for the next steps in the development of the Lexicon.  A commercial deal is 
being discussed that could see work commence this Spring on a major refurbishment 
of Princess Square and subsequently help secure construction of The Deck following 
the demolition of the ex-Bentalls store.  The Executive authorised the Chief Executive 
to finalise such an agreement with Bracknell Regeneration Partnership. 

 
 

Planning and Transport 
 
5.6  Adoption of a Local List of Buildings and Structures of Local Architectural or 

Historic Interest 

5.6.1 The Executive approved the principle of a local list of buildings of historical or 
architectural importance to sit alongside the preparation of the Bracknell Forest Local 
Plan (BFLP).  The local list will be a material consideration in the assessment of 
planning applications.  The Executive also agreed the first nominations for inclusion 
on the local list, subject to the nominating bodies and individual property occupiers 
being notified.  Following the notification of the individual property owners, the final 
decision in respect of the first buildings and structures to be included on the local list 
is referred to a later meeting of the Executive for approval.  Subsequent additions will 
be confirmed by the Executive Member for Planning and Transport in consultation 
with the Director of Place, Planning and Regeneration. 
 

5.6.2 The Council is required to have up to date evidence about the historic environment 
as part of the evidence base of the new local plan.  This includes the identification of 
the Borough’s heritage assets, whether designated (statutorily Listed) or non – 
designated and the contribution they make to the historic environment.  The inclusion 
of a building or structure on a local list will be a material consideration in decision 
making. 
 

5.6.3 The selection process has been based on agreed criteria relating to age of the 
building or structure along with consideration of the following factors: 

 

 architectural interest; 

 historic interest; 

 value as part of a group; 

 contribution to local sense of place; 

 social importance; 

 industrial importance; and, 

 townscape value 
 

5.7 Revised Local Development Scheme 
 

5.7.1 The Executive agreed that the Local Development Scheme 2019 – 2022 would come 
into effect on 20 February 2019. 

 

11



5.7.2 The Council is required to maintain an up to date LDS on its website.  Preparation 
and approval of an up to date LDS aims to give residents, businesses and potential 
investors a clear indication that the Council remains committed to having an effective 
planning policy framework in place.  Certain policies in the current Development Plan 
pre-date current planning legislation, policy and guidance and therefore need to be 
reviewed to provide a robust planning policy framework.  The LDS provides the 
revised timetable for achieving this after the forthcoming elections. 

 
 
 Culture, Resources and Public Protection 

5.8 Strategic Procurement Plan for Purchase of IT Hardware and Packaged 
Software  
 

5.8.1 The Executive approved the approach laid out in the Strategic Procurement
 Plan for IT Hardware and Packed Software to enable ICT Services to procure IT 
hardware and software covering End User Devices; Network Infrastructure and 
Services; Server Hardware, Packaged Software and Miscellaneous IT Equipment 
over the next five years. 

 
 
6 ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS 
 

Borough Solicitor 
 
6.1 The Borough Solicitor’s comments have been addressed in the reports to the 

Executive. 
 

Borough Treasurer 
 
6.2 The Borough Treasurer’s comments have been addressed in the reports to the 

Executive. 
 

Equalities Impact Assessment 
 
6.3 Equalities issues, where appropriate, have been addressed in the reports to the 

Executive. 
 

Strategic Risk Management Issues  
 
6.4 Any strategic risks have been identified in the reports to the Executive. 
 
 
Background Papers 
Executive Agenda – 12 February 2019  
 
 
Contact for further information 
Hannah Stevenson, Delivery - 01344 352308 
Hannah.stevenson@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 

12



Unrestricted 

 

 

TO: COUNCIL 

 27 FEBRUARY 2019 
 

 

FINANCIAL PLANS AND REVENUE BUDGETS 2019/20  

Director of Finance 

 

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 At its meeting on 12 February 2019, the Executive considered the 2019/20 

proposals for the revenue and capital budgets.  The recommendations on 
these proposals are submitted to the Council by the Executive and are 
included in section 2 covering all planned spending, service developments 
and expenditure reductions for next year. 

 
1.2  A separate document presents an overview of the Council’s spending plans 

for 2019/20 and detailed budgets for the General Fund and capital 
programme.  The document reflects the Executive’s recommendations and 
includes the reports considered by it.   

 
1.3 In order to set a legal budget the full Council must make a formal Council Tax 

resolution.  The Localism Act 2011 has made a number of changes to the 
Local Government Finance Act 1992, and now requires the Council to 
calculate a council tax requirement for the year rather than a budget 
requirement. The appropriate resolution to give effect to the proposals 
contained in the separate budget report is included in section 3. 

 
1.4 The Council Tax Resolution also refers to the Council’s capital programme.  

The revenue budget proposals allow for a council funded capital programme 
of £19.050m recommended by the Executive.   

 
1.5 The resolution in Section 3 also includes reference to the Council Tax for the 

Police and Crime Commissioner for the Thames Valley, the Royal Berkshire 
Fire Authority (RBFA) and all Parish Councils as the precepts of these bodies 
must be included in this Council’s formal Council Tax Resolution. The precept 
for the RBFA will be agreed at its meeting on 25 February 2019. The Council 
Tax Resolution assumes a 2.99% increase in the RBFA precept; however 
should this prove to be incorrect paragraphs 3.5 and 3.6 of the Council Tax 
Resolution will be revised and re-issued once the precept is agreed. 

 

2 RECOMMENDATIONS SUBMITTED BY THE EXECUTIVE 

 

2.1 Capital Programme 2019/20 - 2021/22 

 

 RECOMMENDED that: 
 

i) General Fund capital funding of £33.437m for 2019/20 in respect of 
those schemes listed on pages 180 to 183; 

ii) The inclusion of an additional budget of £1m for ‘Invest to Save’ 
schemes be recommended to the Council; 

iii) The inclusion of £1.145m of expenditure to be funded from S106 and 
SANG as outlined in the summary report for Council (page 177) and 
included on pages 180 to 183; 

13

Agenda Item 6



Unrestricted 

 

iv) That those schemes that attract external grant funding be 
recommended to the Council for inclusion within the 2019/20 capital 
programme at the level of funding received. 

           

2.2 Revenue Budget 2019/20 

 

RECOMMENDED that: 
 

i) The budget proposals set out in Table 1 (page 4) of the summary 
report for Council, subject to the changes identified in sections 3.2 
(page 5), 3.3 (pages 5 to 7), 3.5 (pages 7 and 8), 3.6 (page 8 and 9), 
3.9 (pages 9 to 10), 7.2 (page 20) and 7.3 (page 20) of the report, be 
agreed; 

ii) Fees and charges as set out in Annexe G (pages 95 to 165) be 
approved; 

iii) A provision for inflation of £2.396m be approved; 
iv) The commitment budget as set out in Annexe A be approved (pages 

23 to 24); 
 v) That the Council should make additional funding available for 

distribution to schools through the local funding formula at the level 
set out in section 4.1 (page 11) of the summary report for Council 
subject to any minor amendments made by the Executive Member for 
Children, Young People and Learning following the receipt of 
definitive funding allocations for Early Years and High Needs; 

vi) A contingency of £2.500m be included, use of which is authorised by 
the Chief Executive in consultation with the Director: Finance in 
accordance with the delegations included in the Council’s constitution; 

vii) Subject to the above recommendations the revised draft budget 
proposals be agreed; 

viii) A contribution of £2.614m (after allowing for additional interest from 
the use of balances of £0.032m) be made from revenue balances to 
support revenue expenditure; 

ix) Total net expenditure (after use of balances) of £72.355m, be 
approved;  

 x) The Council’s Council Tax requirement, excluding Parish Council 
precepts, be set at £59.419m; 

xi) The Council Tax for the Council’s services for each Valuation Band be 
set as follows: 

 

Band 
Tax Level 
Relative to 

Band D 
        £ 

A 6/9 869.22 

B 7/9 1,014.09 

C 8/9 1,158.96 

D 9/9 1,303.83 

E 11/9 1,593.57 

F 13/9 1,883.31 

G 15/9 2,173.05 

H 18/9 2,607.66 

 
   
 At the meeting on 12 February 2019 the Executive recommended the 

2019/20 Treasury Management Strategy Statement and noted that strategy 

14



Unrestricted 

 

together with the Prudential Indicators and the Minimum Revenue Provision 
Policy Statement were matters which the Council needed to approve. 

xii) The Council approves the following indicators, limits, strategies and 
policies included in Annexe E (pages 61 to 86): 

 The Prudential Indicators and Limits for 2019/20 to 2021/22 
contained within Annexe E(i); 

 The Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy contained within 
Annexe E(ii); 

 The Treasury Management Strategy Statement, and the Treasury 
Prudential Indicators contained in Annexe E(iii); 

 The Authorised Limit Prudential Indicator in Annexe E(iii); 

 The Investment Strategy 2019/20 to 2021/22 and Treasury 
Management Limits on Activity contained in Annexe E(iv); 

 

xiii)  The formal Council Tax Resolution contained in section 3 be 
approved. 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

15



Unrestricted 

 

3 COUNCIL TAX RESOLUTION 
 
3.1 That the recommendations of the Executive outlined in sections 2.1 and 2.2 

be agreed. 

3.2 That it be noted that the amounts calculated for the year 2019/20 in 
accordance with Section 67 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 are :- 

 

(a) 45,573 TAX BASE FOR THE WHOLE COUNCIL AREA 

 being the amount calculated by the Council, in accordance with 
regulation 3 of the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) 
Regulations 1992, as amended, as its council tax base for the year 

 (b) TAX BASE FOR PART OF THE COUNCIL’S AREA 

   EACH PARISH AREA 

Binfield 3,957 

Bracknell 19,371 

Crowthorne 2,736 

Sandhurst 7,883 

Warfield 4,838 

Winkfield 6,788 

 being the amounts calculated by the Council, in accordance with 
regulation 6 of the Regulations, as amended, as the amounts of its 
council tax base for the year for dwellings in those parts of its area to 
which one or more special items relate 

 
3.3 That the following amounts be now calculated by the Council for the year 

2019/20 in accordance with Sections 31 to 36 of the Local Government and 
Finance Act 1992 as amended (the Act), noting that Bracknell Town Council’s 
(BTC) precept is subject to confirmation by BTC on 26 February:- 

 

(a) £296,693,577 TOTAL EXPENDITURE INCLUDING GENERAL 

FUND, PARISH PRECEPTS AND THE COUNCIL’S 

SHARE OF ANY DEFICIT ON THE COLLECTION 

FUND 

 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates for 
the items set out in Section 31A(2) of the Act 

 

16



Unrestricted 

 

(b) £233,939,416 TOTAL INCOME INCLUDING GOVERNMENT 

SUPPORT AND THE COUNCIL’S SHARE OF ANY 

SURPLUS ON THE COLLECTION FUND 

 being the aggregate of the amounts which the Council estimates for 
the items set out in Section 31A(3) of the Act 

 

 (c) £62,754,161 BOROUGH AND PARISH PRECEPTS NET 

EXPENDITURE TO BE FINANCED FROM 

COUNCIL TAX 

 being the amount by which the aggregate at 3.3(a) above exceeds the 
aggregate at 3.3(b) above, calculated by the Council, in accordance 
with Section 31A(4) of the Act, as its council tax requirement for the 
year 

 

 (d) £1,377.00 AVERAGE BAND "D" COUNCIL TAX FOR WHOLE 

BOROUGH 

 being the amount at 3.3(c) above, divided by the amount at 3.2(a) 
above, calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 31B(1) 
of the Act, as the basic amount of its council tax for the year (including 
Parish precepts) 

 

 (e) £3,334,716 PARISH PRECEPTS 

 being the aggregate amount of all special items referred to in 
Section 34(1) of the Act 

 

   (f) £1,303.83 BOROUGH COUNCIL TAX FOR BAND "D" PROPERTIES 

being the amount at 3.3(d) above less the result given by dividing the 
amount at 3.3(e) above by the amount at 3.2(a) above, calculated by 
the Council, in accordance with Section 34(2) of the Act, as the basic 
amount of its council tax for the year if there were an area of the 
Borough to which no special item relates  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

17



Unrestricted 

 

 

 

 

(g) Part of the 
Council’s area 

BOROUGH AND PARISH COUNCIL TAX FOR EACH 

PARISH FOR BAND “D” 

Binfield £1,355.39 

Bracknell £1,387.49 

Crowthorne £1,381.19 

Sandhurst £1,377.12 

Warfield £1,344.14 

Winkfield £1,381.28 

 being the amounts given by adding to the amount at 3.3(f) above the 
amounts of the special item or items relating to dwellings in those 
parts of the Council's area mentioned above divided in each case by 
the amount at 3.2(b) above, calculated by the Council, in accordance 
with Section 34(3) of the Act, as the basic amounts of its council tax 
for the year for dwellings in those parts of its area to which one or 
more special items relate 

 

 (h) Part of the Council's 
area 

BOROUGH AND PARISH COUNCIL TAX IN 

EACH PARISH FOR EACH VALUATION BAND 

 

Parish A B C D E F G H 

 £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Binfield 903.59 1,054.19 1,204.79 1,355.39 1,656.59 1,957.79 2,258.98 2,710.78 

Bracknell 924.99 1,079.16 1,233.32 1,387.49 1,695.82 2,004.15 2,312.48 2,774.98 

Crowthorne 920.79 1,074.26 1,227.72 1,381.19 1,688.12 1,995.05 2,301.98 2,762.38 

Sandhurst 918.08 1,071.09 1,224.11 1,377.12 1,683.15 1,989.17 2,295.20 2,754.24 

Warfield 896.09 1,045.44 1,194.79 1,344.14 1,642.84 1,941.54 2,240.23 2,688.28 

Winkfield 920.85 1,074.33 1,227.80 1,381.28 1,688.23 1,995.18 2,302.13 2,762.56 

being the amounts given by multiplying the amounts at 3.3(g) above 
by the number which, in the proportion set out in Section 5(1) of the 
Act, is applicable to dwellings listed in a particular valuation band 
divided by the number which in that proportion is applicable to 
dwellings listed in valuation band D, calculated by the Council, in 
accordance with Section 36(1) of the Act, as the amounts to be taken 
into account for the year in respect of categories of dwellings listed in 
different valuation bands 

18



Unrestricted 

 

 

3.4 That it be noted that for the year 2019/20 the Police and Crime Panel have 
stated the following amounts in precepts issued to the Council regarding the 
Police and Crime Commissioner for the Thames Valley, in accordance with 
Section 40 of the Act, for each of the categories of dwellings shown below:- 

 

 A B C D E F G H 

 £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Police and Crime 
Commissioner for 
the Thames Valley 

137.52 160.44 183.36 206.28 252.12 297.96 343.80 412.56 

 

 

3.5 That it be noted that for the year 2019/20 the Royal Berkshire Fire Authority 
have stated the following amounts in precepts issued to the Council, subject 
to confirmation by the Fire Authority on 25 February, in accordance with 
Section 40 of the Act, for each of the categories of dwellings shown below:- 

        

 A B C D E F G H 

 £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Royal Berkshire Fire 
Authority 44.19 51.55 58.92 66.28 81.01 95.74 110.47 132.56 

 

3.6 That, having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at 3.3(h), 
3.4 and 3.5 above, the Council, in accordance with Section 30(2) of the Act, 
hereby sets the following amounts as the amounts of council tax for the year 
2019/20 for each of the categories of dwellings shown below:- 

 

(a) Part of the Council's 
area 

TOTAL COUNCIL TAX FOR EACH VALUATION 

BAND 

 

Parish A B C D E F G H 

 £ £ £ £ £ £ £ £ 

Binfield 1,085.30 1,266.18 1,447.07 1,627.95 1,989.72 2,351.49 2,713.25 3,255.90 

Bracknell 1,106.70 1,291.15 1,475.60 1,660.05 2,028.95 2,397.85 2,766.75 3,320.10 

Crowthorne 1,102.50 1,286.25 1,470.00 1,653.75 2,021.25 2,388.75 2,756.25 3,307.50 

Sandhurst 1,099.79 1,283.08 1,466.39 1,649.68 2,016.28 2,382.87 2,749.47 3,299.36 

Warfield 1,077.80 1,257.43 1,437.07 1,616.70 1,975.97 2,335.24 2,694.50 3,233.40 

Winkfield 1,102.56 1,286.32 1,470.08 1,653.84 2,021.36 2,388.88 2,756.40 3,307.68 

 
 
 
 
 
 

19



Unrestricted 

 

4 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

 
 To enable the Council to make a formal Council Tax resolution by setting a 

revenue budget, Council Tax level and capital budget for 2019/20.   

 

5 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
5.1 Background information relating to the options considered is included in the 

supporting information. 

 

6 SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
6.1 The attached ‘Financial Plans and Budget Supporting Information 2019/20’ 

presents an overview of the Council’s spending plans for 2019/20 and 
detailed budgets for the General Fund and capital programme.  The 
document reflects the Executive’s recommendations and includes summaries 
of the reports considered by it.   

 

7 ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS 
 
 Borough Solicitor 
 
7.1 Nothing to add to the report. 
  

Director: Finance 
 
7.2 The financial implications of this report are included in the supporting 

information. 
 

Equalities Impact Assessment 
 

7.3 The Council’s budget proposals impact on a wide range of services.  A 
detailed consultation was undertaken on the draft budget proposals published 
in December to provide individuals and groups the opportunity to provide 
comments.   

 
7.4 None of the budget proposals require specific equality impact assessments to 

be carried out. 
 

Strategic Risk Management Issues 
 
7.5 The supporting information sets out the key risks facing the Council’s budget 

and the arrangements in place to manage these risks, including maintaining 
an appropriate level of reserves and contingency. 

 
8 CONSULTATION 
 
8.1 Details of the consultation process and responses received are included in 

the supporting information.  
 
 
 
 
 

20



Unrestricted 

 

Contact for further information 
 
Stuart McKellar - 01344 352180 
Stuart.McKellar@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 
Arthur Parker - 01344 352158 
Arthur.parker@bracknell-forest.gov.uk 
 

21

mailto:Stuart.McKellar@bracknell-forest.gov.uk
mailto:Arthur.parker@bracknell-forest.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	5 Executive Report
	6 Financial Budgets and Revenue Plans 2019/20

